
Abbess-Elect Envisions Great U. S. Benedictine Convent
Mother Augustina Returns to Germany Next Month But Her Heart W ill Remain in Colorado

A grgantic Benedioine convent, a St. Walburga’s of 
the West, is the W jo c h o p e  envisioned by Mother M. 
Augustina Weihermuellcrp^perior of St. Walbutga’s con­
vent in South Boulder, as she prepares to return to Ger­
many to assume her position as, Lady Abbess at the mother- 
house of her community in Eidistaett, Bavaria.

Mother Augustina’s departure for Europe is scheduled 
for the middle of August, possibly Aug. 17 or 18, after 
she and her companion sisters, and a group of Benedictine 
nuns from Holy Cross abbey in Canon City, complete their 
annual retreat, which will be given by the Rev. Paschal 
Bota, O.S.B., of St. John’s abbey, Collegeville, Minn.

Tuesday, Sept. 12, is the date that has been set for 
her blessing as Abbess at the hands of Bishop Josef Schroes-

ser of Eichstaett. That day is the Feast of the Holy Name 
of Mary, a name that Mother Augustina bears as'' a nun. 
The ceremony will be held in St. Walburga’s parish church 
and the cloistered nuns of the community will witness it 
ffom their private choir.

That day, just two months hence, will mark the first 
time that an American citizen ,has returned to Europe to 
assume direction of an Old World nuns’ abbey. But Ab­
bess-elect Augustina is not relinquishing her U. S. citizen­
ship. She is obtaining special permission from the U. S. 
Military government in Germany for exceptional residence 
in that country. The only requirement is that she periodi­
cally, perhaps every five years, spend some time in this 
country, where she has been for 15 years.

In 1949 when Mother Augustina visited the German 
mother-house and conferred with the late Lady Abbess Ben- 
edicta, whom she has succeeejed, among the subjects con­
sidered wJs the possibility of transferring the heart of the 
order to America if Russia should:overrun Europe!

At the great St. Walburga’s mother-house in Eich­
staett, she will be superior of 130 sisters. 'The community 
also has 53 nuns in the U. S., including eight at South 
Boulder, seven in Canon City, 38 in St. Vincent’s arch­
abbey, Latrobe, Pa.; and 10 in Ehgland. It is to this Ger­
man mother-house that the small Colorado community and 
many of their American neighbors have been sending .a 
stream of relief packages to sustain the sisters there.

Mother Augustina declares that her greatest privilege

as Abbess will be as custodian and distributor of the famed 
St. Walburga oil. This oil exudes from the bones of the 
saint, who founded the Benedictine community and lived 
710-780. Many remarkable cures have been attributed 
to its use while seeking the intercession o f  St. Walburga.

'Those who have heard Mother Augustina in one of her 
frequent talks on Theresa Neumann, the stigmatic o f Kon- 
nerseuth, know that she will readily respond to an invita­
tion she received recently from Theresa to visit her before 
she assumes her duties as Abbess. 'The two have known each 
dther for a long time and it was Theresa who predicted 
a year before it came to pass that Mother Augustina would 
become the new Abbess. KonOersreuth is about 150 miles 
from Eichstaett.

Abbeii-Elect Aagnitin>
Mullen High to Take Day Pupils

Clergy Retreat on July 17-21
The Rev. T h o m a s  J.

Motherway, S.J., of St^Mary
of the Lake seminary, Mundelein,
111., will be the retreat master for 
the annual retreat of the clergy of 
the Archdiocese of Denver. The ex­
ercises will be held in St. Thomas’ 
seminary, Denver, from. Monday 
evening, July 17, to Friday morn­
ing, July 21.
Well-Known Jesuit 
Retreat Master

Father Motherway has taught 
theology for many years as a mem­
ber of the faculty of St. Louis uni­
versity and of St. Mary of the 

■ Lake seminary. He is well known 
throughout the Midwest for his 
work in giving retreats in the sum­
mers to priests, religious, and the 
laity.

Some 130 priests of the archdio­
cese are expected to attend the re­
treat this year, taxing the facil­
ities of the seminary.

Completion of New Classroom Buildings 
Permits Entry of 50 Off-Campus Youths

A limit of 50 day scholars will be admitted to the high school of the J. KTMullen Home 
for Boys, Fort Logan, beginning with the next scholastic session, which opens in Sep­
tember. Until the present, only boarders were taken in as students at the home that was 
established in 1931 through the benefaction of the Mullen foundation, in memory of Mr. 
and Mrs. John K. Mullen, pioneer Denver Catholic philanthropists. Because of a recently 
completed expansion program, however, the acceptance of off-campus students will be 
possible and will expand the school’s present enrollment by 100 per cent.

The registration of new students may be made any day except Sunday from Mon­
day, July 17, to Tuesday, Aug. 1, with Brother Paul, F.S.C., principal, who will supply in 
formation concerning tuition and other fees. His phone number is SU. 1-6909.

Two classroom buildings at the
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Father Motherway

Campaign Opens July 17

Drive at St. Philomena's 
To Clear $93,000 Debt

A drive to pay at the earliest reasonable date the $93,000 
debt contracted in the completion of St. Philomena’s school, 
Denver, will begin Monday, July 17. One hundred twenty- 
five men and 25 teams of women will make some 800 calls 
on parishioners in the following week and expect to com­
plete their canvass by June 24.

The campaign has resulted from 
what Monsignor William M. Hig­
gins, pastor, refers to as “ the 
unique experience of my pastoral 
career.”  It originated entirely 
from the lay members of the par­
ish, the suggestion for it being 
presented without any inspiration 
from Monsignor Higgins.

Six 'iveeks ago a lay committee 
called upon him to extend con­
gratulations on the completion of

Seven of Clergy 
In Santa Fe Are 
Named Prelates
Three a l u m n i  of St. 

Thomas’ seminary, Denver, 
are among the seven priests 
of the Archdiocese of Santa 
Fe upon whom Pius XII has 
conferred the rank of Domestic 
Prelate with the title of Right 
Reverend Monsignor. They are the 
Rt. Rev. Philip J. Cassidy, pastor 
of St. Rose of Lima’s parish, Santa 

|,p- Rosa, ordained from the seminary 
in 1931; the Rt. Rev. Carlos S. 
Blanchard, Chancellor, a member 
of the seminary class of 1939; and 
the Rt, Rev. Sigmund Charewicz, 
secretary to Archbishop Edwin V. 
Byrne and chaplain of St. Cather­
ine’s Indian school, a member of 
the seminary class of December. 
1943.

The other priests whose honors 
were announced by  the Apostolic 
Delegate, Archbishop Amleto G. 
Ciognani, t h r o u g h  Archbishop 
Byrne, are the Rt. Rey. George V. 
Rieffer, rector of the Immaculate 
heart of Mary seminary; the Rt 
Rev. William T. Bradley, superin­
tendent of Catholic schools, hospi­
tals, and archdiocesan charities; 
the Rt. Rev. Joseph Maguire, pas­
tor of St. Patrick’s parish, Raton; 
and .the Rt. Rev. Joseph Pajot,' 
chaplain of St Anthony’s hospi­
tal, Las Vegas.

Seven laymen also were named 
Knights of St Gregory and three 
women received the Papal medal 
Pro Ecclesia et Pontifice.
(Picture! and biographical defaili 

on Page 5)

SL.Therese Burse 
Notes Slim Returns

Slim returns on the Little 
Flower burse being raised for the 
education of seminarians for the 
Archdiocese^of Denver indicate 
this week that business is not the 
only thing affected by the summer 
slump.! In the past month only a 
little more than $300 has been 
received for the project planned 
in honor of the silver jubilee of 
of the canonization of St. Therese 
of Lisieux. Sponsors of the burse, 
however, point out that there are 
still 11 full weeks remaining be­
fore the anniversary date, Oct. 3, 
and that several large donations 
or a pumber of small ones will 
still insure the completion of the 
burse by that time.

In the past week four gifts 
amounting to $56 were received. 
The contributions came from Mrs. 
John Zato of Craig, $1; A Friend, 
Denver, $20; Lt. Joan Wissing, 
Fitzsiraons hospital, $10; and 
Anonymous, Denver, $25.

Contributions may be sent di­
rectly jto the Most Rev. Urban J. 
Vehr atthe Chancery office, 1536 
Logan ‘ street, Denver 5, Colo.

the school and invited him to at 
tend a meeting in the home of 
Frank Bruno. At the meeting Mr. 
Bruno, as spokesman for the 30 
members of the group, told him 
'We are very pleased with the 

school you have finished and ex- 
iress our thanks for the work that 
as been done in giving us the 

beautiful building which will be 
used by our children for genera­
tions. We feel that you have had 
the responsibility of direction. It 
is our job now to pay the debt be 
fore the building can be said to 
be truly ours. We are confident 
your people will want it done, if 
a program can be arranged that 

11 burden no family excessively.” 
At this meeting and a second 

one held in the home of Dr. Frank 
McGlone plans were made for the 
campaign that will beg;in next 
Monday. Printing and other costs 
of the campaign have been under 
written by the original committee, 
and at a general meeting of the 
parish Men’s club last week the 
Altar society and PTA were in­
vited to co-operate in the conduct 
of the drive.

To Rail* $31,000 Annually
Donations ranging from $36 to 

$180 will be asked, payable 
monthly in from one to three 
years. The committee feels that, 
without undue hardship on any 
family, it will be possible to raise 
approximately $31,000 each year 
in the next three years and thus 
liquidate entirely the parish obli­
gation.

Men who will work on the drive 
have been invited to a breakfast in 
the school hall Sunday, July 16, 
after the 8 o’clock Mass, when a 
short meeting will be held and in 
structions and assignments will be 
given. The women’s teams will be 
entertained at a lunch the follow­
ing day, July 17, at 12:30 in the 
parish hall.

The original unit of the school 
was constructed in 1924 and it was 
first enlarged in 1928. In the sec­
tion completed this spring a sec­
ond story was added, containing 
four new^classrooms and several 
auxiliary rooms. The recent addi­
tion was erected at a cost approxi­
mating $180,000. It WM dedicated 
on April 2 by Archbishop Urban 
J. Vehr, who referred to it as “ one 
of the most beautiful schools in 
the Denver archdiocese.”

school were completed in the early 
part of the spring so as to provide 
sufficient r o o m  to bring the 
number in the student body to 
100. The expansion program was 
designed to provide easily accessi­
ble high school facilities for Cath­
olic boys at Ft. Logan, Engle­
wood, and Littleton.

Both of the two new buildings 
are of frame construction. One 
contains a study hall, library, into 
which more than 2,000 .volumes 
were recently moved and typing 
room on the first floor, and a 
principal’s office and four class­
rooms on the second story,. The 
second new building has a large 
machine shop, faculty lounge, rest 
room, and storage room on the 
bottom floor, and a drafting room, 
physics laboratory, chemistry lab­
oratory, and storage room on the 
second floor.

Because of the new buildings 
and facilities, the school is now 
enabled to proeide manual train­
ing courses in machine shop and 
woodwork. Formerly the only 
trade experience arailable to the 
students has been in the large 
dairy and farm, on which they 
do all the work. The home has 
approximately 180 acres of 
land.
The six Christian Brothers \̂ ho 

staffed the institution last year 
included Brother Paul, principal; 
Brother Charles, in charge o f the 
dairy and teacher of bookkeeping 
anr' mechanical drawing; Brother 
Edwin, junior and senior teacher; 
Brother Felix, sophomore teacher; 
Brother Gordian, freshman spon­
sor; and Brother Michael, prefect 
in charge of the boys’ activities 
outside of classes.

Archbishop-Elect Alter 
To Be Installed Sept. 26

Cincinnati.— The Most Rex. 
Karl Joseph Alter of Toledo will 
be installed as Archbishop of the 
Metropolitan See of Cincinnati 
Tuesday, Sept. 26, in St. Mon­
ica’s Cathedral. Cardinal Sam­
uel Stritch, predecessor of the 
Archbishop-elect as Bishop of 
Toledo, O., will officiate at the 
ceremony.

Nearly 1100,000 
Is Obtained in 
Regis Campaign

Nearly one-fifth of the 
$500,000 goal in the Regis 
college expansion fund drive 
was reported realized at the 
first report luncheon held in
the Cosmopolitan hotel, Denver, 
July 12. The Rt. Rev. Monsignor 
William M. Higgins, pastor of St. 
Philomena’s church, and the Very 
Rev. Raphael McCarthy, S.J., Regis 
president, praised the efforts of 
the workers. The total stands at 
$9..,370. The campaign started 
July 6 and is expected to end with 
the attainment of the goal July 25.

G. A. I’Estrange served as chair­
man at the luncheon. Reports were 
given by E m m e t t  Dignan, ad­
vance gifts chairman, and Martin 
T. Griffith, general army chair­
man. Individual majors who gave 
reports at the luncheon are Paul 
V Murray, division A; Paul L, 
Schmitz, division B; and Mmes. 
William May, David Finnegan, and 
Joseph Simpson, division C.

Classroom Building Planned
The first building to be erected 

as the result of the campaign will 
be a classroom building of modern, 
functional design which will be 
built along the entrance drive just 
to the north of Carroll hall.. In 
one of its wings it will house the 
chemistry and biology laboratories 
of the college and this will release 
much-needed space in Carroll hall, 
the dormitory building.

Some 56 double rooms will be 
constructed iii this released space 
so that the out-of-town enrollment 
at the college may be increased by 
more than 100 students in the near 
future. In recent years, Regis has 
been forced to turn away out-of- 
state applicants because of lack of 
room. If Regis had the room, it is 
thought that it could develop to 
an enrollment of 1,000 students in 
a short time.

Outdoor Site of Carmelite Triduum

THE ^BEAUTIFUL outdoor setting for 
the annual triduum in honor of Our Lady 
of Mr. Carmel, to be held at the Carmel of the Car­
melite Nuns in Littleton July 14-16 is shown above.' 
The Carmel is on Gallup avenue. The services 'will

One-Half of Family of Ten 
Has Entered Religious Life

By Elizabeth McSherry
A family of 10 children, five of 

whom are in religion, is the envi­
able record of Mr. and Mrs. James 
E. Simms, 3729 W. 32nd avenue, 
Denver.

The newest professed religious 
of the family. Brother Amedy Leo­
pold, made his perpetual vows as 
a Christian Brother July 3 in the 
chapel of St. Michael’s college, 
Santa Fe, N. Mex. His parents 
were there for the ceremony.

The former William Simms, he 
attended S t Dominic’s parish 
grade school before entering the 
junior novitiate of the Brothers. 
He received his relig;ious garb in 
1944 and has since taught at St. 
Michael’s high school in Santa Fe 
and at Landry Memorial high 
school. Lake Charles, La.

+  +  +

Professed as Brothers

BROTHER AMEDY LEOPOLD (left) and Brother 
Anselm Alban made their perpetual profession as Chris­
tian Brothers in Santa Fe, N. Mex., on July 3. Brother Leopold, the 
former William Simms of Denver, attended St. Dominic’s grade school 
before entering religious life. Brother Alban, the former Joseph 
Porter, attended St. Clara’s grade school and Mullen high school.

Religious vocations seem to “ run 
in the family,”  as Mrs. Simms puts 
it  Mr. Simms has a nephew who 
is a Jesuit priest, and a niece who 
has entered religion in California. 
There are religious on Mrs. Simms’ 
side of the family, also.

The Simms children all attended 
school, made their First Com­
munion, and were confirmed in St 
Dominic’s parish. The five entered 
religion at an early age. Brother 
Basil Timpthy, after graduation 
from high school, was athletic 
coach at St. Clara’s orphanage, 
where he found his vocation. He 
entered the Christian Brothers’ no­
vitiate at 19, and is now at Camp 
LaSalle, Santa Fe, continuing his 
work -with boys.

Brother Brendan Benezet a t 
tended the Christian Brothers’ 
high school in Lafayette. Now 17, 
he will take his first vows as a 
Christian Brother Aug. 17. When 
still a youngster, his desire to be 
a priest was evident, and he was 
affectionately dubbed “ P o p e  
Steve”  by his brothers and sisters.

Father Robert A. Simms, now 
a teacher at Rockhurst college; 
Kansas City, Mo., entered me 
Jesuit order at 18. Sister Agatha 
Berchmans is stationed at the old 
folks’ home mahitained by the 
Little Sisters of the Poor in Min­
neapolis, Minn.
Three of This Family 
Now in Religious Life

Making his perpetual vows with 
Brother Leopold was another Colo­
rado boy, the former Joseph Por­
ter, whose mother, Mrs. P. W. 
Ryan, lives in Lollgmont His fa 
ther is deceased. Mr. Porter’s 
name in religion is Brother An­
selm Alban. He attended St, 
Clara’s and Mullen high school un­
til his entry into the junior novi- 
tiatq in 1940. He received his reli­
gions garb in 1942. For the past 
three years he has been teaching 
at St Peter’s college. New 
Iberia, La.

Two other members of his fam­
ily are also ill religion. Sister M. 
Daniel Of the Order of St Francis, 
and Brother Regis Porter, C.P., 
both of St Louis.

be held every evening at the outdoor ̂ altar beginning 
at 7:30 o’clock. Priests who will deliver sermons at 
the services are the Very Rev. Monsignors David 
Maloney, John B. Cavanagh, and Walter J. Canavan. 
On the last evening, Sunday, Archbishop Urban 
J. Vehr will officiate at Benediction.

Answer in Fleming School Suit Based 
On Constitutional Rights of Teachers

School Directors Hoefler, Lock, and Bornhoft, of School District 43 in St. Peter’s, 
Fleming, involved as defendants in the suit brought by W. E. Outcalt, with former Gov­
ernor Ralph L. Carr acting as his attorney, have now answered the plaintiff’s complaint 
Outcalt’s suit seeks to bar payment
of two nuns who teach in the 
school.

The answer was filed on July 10 
at Sterling, Colo., in the District 
court, where the case has been 
the subject of preliminary motions 
for a period of almost ten months 
now. The school directors have 
served in the St. Peter school for 
many years, and categorically deny 
the charges by Outcalt that they 
sought to abolish the public schools 
and establish a parochial school 
in the guise of a publicly supported 
institution acting under parochial 
authorities. ^  ^

The answer leaves no doubt as 
to the differences in the charges 
made by Outcalt, for the directors 
have taken the firm stand' that 
the school in which two Catholic 
teachers conduct classes as ac­
credited state employes is in fact a 
public scHool, free of any religious 
teaching, using the public school 
curricula and regular books and in 
all manner of law being conducted 
as any other institution, under the 
supervision of the county superin  ̂
tendent and the state superinten­
dent of public instruction.

The answer filed by these three 
defendants, who are defending

with Mrs. Doris Plummer, Logan 
county superintendent of schools, 
and Nettie S. Freed, state super­
intendent of public instruction, 
admits that rent is being paid to 
church authorities for the use of 
public school facilities, at a reas­
onable rental, and that the two 
teachers, citizens of the United 
States, subject  ̂to the Colorado 
loyalty oath and of long tenure of 
this school, are' teaching in their 
religious garb,  ̂ the wearing of 
which the directors claim is pro­
tected by several provisions of the 
United States aiid Colorado consti­
tutions.

The main essentials of the an­
swer are its references'to the plain­
tiff’s attempt to invalidate the em­
ployment of these teachers by de­
nying to them the right to dress in 
accordance with their right secured 
by federal and state laws, and to 
do 'with their {salaries as they 
please. Previously a former at­
torney general of the state of Colo­
rado had given his written ap­
proval to the rental arrangement 
and the payment of teachers so 
dressed, and in this judgment, Mrs. 
Nettie S. Freed, (he state super­

intendent of public instruction, has 
concurred from time to time.

Mr. Outcalt, the plaintiff who 
is represented by ,Mr. Carr, does 
not live in this particular school 
district, but resides elsewhere in 
the County of Logan. The defend­
ant directors have denied his right 
to bring the action as a taxpayer 
because of his remote status. 'The 
directors further assert that the 
teachers are rendering valuable 
services at regular pay for their 
teaching, against which no criti' 
cism has been at any time ad­
vanced by the parents and pupils 
more particularly concerned in the 
area affected.

W. F. Alexander, treasurer of 
Logan county, who was forced in 
another suit to sign the teachers’ 
warrants for the school year 1949- 
1950, was also a defendant. He 
has declined representation by At­
torney General John W. Metzger, 
who is appearing on behalf of the 
defendants Plummer and Freed.

The defendant school directors 
completely denied any violation of 
the law in the conduct of the school 
in question as a unit of the Colo­
rado public school system and 
claim that it is conducted in all 
respects in conformity with law.

Workshop Slated 
At Heights for 
August 1/ to 2/

The third annual workshop 
in Catholic higher education 
for women will be held at Lo- 
retto Heights college, Denver, 
Aug. 17-27. In the past two 
years this workshop has attracted 
educators from all over the coun­
try because of its emphasis on 
problems pertinent to Catholic 
women’s colleges. Sister Flaget, di­
rector of faculty study at Loretto 
Heights, is the co-ordinator. She 
has been assisted by Sister Josetta 
of Xavier college. Chicago; Sister 
Rose, St. Scholastica’s college, Du­
luth, Mkin.; Sister Teresa Francis, 
Clarke college, Dubuque, la.; and 
Miss Irene Murchison, Loretto 
Heights college.
Evaluation Slated 
Curriculum

The over-all topic, will be the 
evaluation of the curriculum, and 
seminars will be set up to provide 
for the application of techniques 
of evaluating the general educa­
tion in physical science, social sci­
ence, communications, humanities, 
and religion. Study groups will be 
organiz^ for those nurse educa­
tors who wish to work on problems 
of evaluation relating to collegiate 
nursing programs. *

The liberal arts college has been 
subjected to intense scrutiny in 
the past few years with the result 
that its position has been more 
definitely strengthened. Educators, 
in fulfilling the traditional pur­
pose of a liberal education, 
namely, teaching people how to 
live, have a different approach to 
general education. Attention is 
focused on the urgent need for a 
restoration of those human values 
whiih have been gradually lost 
sight of in the planning of the 
past half century, during which 
specialization has been stressed.

In the past two summers, work- 
shoppers analyzed and formulated 
objectives f o r  th e  Catholic 
women’s college and have dis­
cussed ways of realizibg them. The 
present workshop will attempt to 
evaluate the work being done in 
the respective colleges repre­
sented.
Distinguished Panel 
Of Participants

Some of the participants will be 
the Rev. Clarence Whitford, S.J., 
Marquette university, Milwaukee; 
Sister Annette of the College of 
St Catherine, St. Paul, Minh.; 
Sister Eunice, Clarke college, Du­
buque; Sister Marie Therese, 
Xavier college, Chicago; Sister Ed­
win Mary, Webster college, Web­
ster Groves, Mo. ; Sister Helen Ce- 
cille, Loretto Heights college; and 
Chester Harris, University of Wis­
consin.

Work Halted on Ten Projects
EXPANSION AND CONSTRUCTION projects of Catholic 

institutions have stood idle since the beginning of the two-month 
construction strike in Denver and erection of two churches and a 
rectory was not even started, according to a survey of the situation 
as it affects church construction.

Because contractors are unwilling (o commit themselves until 
the situation clears, two pastors. Monsignor Charles H. Hagus and 
the Rev. Louis Mertz, have not been able to put; out for bids the 
plans for new churches in Swansea and Aurora. The proposed 
Our Lady of Grace church in Swansea, cared for by the priests of 
the Annunciation parish, would have been well on the way if 
building coulchhave started before the strike was called, according 
to Monsignor Hagus. Ground was broken, but the work stoppage 
came before foundations could be excavated.

• *  *

PROJECTS ON WHICH CONSTRUCTION had started in­
cluded a new wing at the Cathedral high school, the new St. 
Peter and Paul’s church in Wheatridge, Mt^ Catmel high school, 
the new St Mary Magdalene’s school in Edgewater, the new An­
nunciation high school, St. Dominic’s new grade school, expansion 
of the Blessed Sacrament school, and the warehouse and expanded 
office building of the Register.

Among the most discouraging reports is that from St. Dom­
inic’s, where some cement retaining walls were the extent of con­
struction before worMPwas stopped. Even the foundations remain 
to be‘‘poured, according to the Dominican Fathers The North Side 
parish had hoped to open its new school by T-hanksgiving, but 
there is now little chance that the building will: be ready before 
late spring o f  1951.

In practically the same situation Is the new;Mt. Carmel high 
school. Work had started on the footings and 26 itons of steel and 
300 yards of concrete were in place when work jvas stopped. The 
Servite Fathers had planned to open the school ifor the freshman 
class this fall and the building was supposed to be completed by 
the first of the year.

Also completely halted is the expansion of Blessed Sacrament

school. Foundations and cement forms for the second floor of 
the new building were completed, according to Monsignor Harold 
V. Campbell, but steel and brick work cannot progress until car­
penters are available. The $275,000 project was started in Novem­
ber and was to be finished by September.

?  * ♦ »
PLASTER WORK is being finished at the new St. Mary 

Magdalene school, said Monsignor James Flanagan, and there is 
still hope that the school will greet its first pupils in September. 
Only about a month’s work remains to be completed when all 
trades are able to work on the building.

June 29, the patronal feast of the new Parish of Sts. Peter 
and Paul in Wheatridge, was planned as the dedication day for 
the church by the Rev. .Robert McMahon, pastor, but the strike 
prevented it. The basement church is actually quite near comple­
tion. Its cement walls have been poured and some brick work is 
progressing. The roofing of the structure and the necessary car­
pentry can be finished quickly. A rectory is also included in the 
project at Wheatridge.

Plumbers, tile setters, and some other workmen have been 
at work for the past three weeks at the new Annunciation high 
school building, where the brick work is done. The building is now 
ready for roofing, according to Monsignor Hagus, but there is 
little chance that it will be ready for the fall enrollment.

* * ..a
WALLS OF THE NEW WING at the Cathedral high school 

are up and the plumbing is completed as far as it can be, but 
further progress waits the return of the carpenters. Monsignor 
Canavan is pessimistic over the possibility of opening the addition 
in S^tember.

'The new parish hall at St. Mary’s in Littleton had been com­
pleted sufficiently for use at the parish bazaar in May. Only 
some stone work on the exterior and a few odds and ends of 
the interior remained. Thb Rev. Frederick McCallin said that all 
trades returned to work on the building last week, his contractor 
having made satisfactory arrangements with the unions, and 
that the building will be entirely finished in about a month.

i
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Swim in Clean, Heated 
Drinking Water

Open
1 to 5 p.m.

7 to 10 p.m.
Daily

Adults 60^, Children 35^

PROGRESS PLUNGE
SSOO W. Florida Weatwood J8( 
Ft. Lotan Bui at Alameda & Bdwy. 

“ Look for tha ‘SWIM’ gifn 
on So. Federal"

Seven New Domestic Prelates in Santa Fe Archdiocese

New & Used
LAWN MOWERS

Power
M owers.......... •103®°

Mowers Sharpened 
. . . .  Repaired

A . La 
GLODT

253 Broadwav SPruce 6438

Draper's Upholstery
926 West 6th Ave.

Furniture
Repairing

Erening 
Calla

Bui. Phone MAin 4507
Rea. Phonea RAce 1926

RAce 4004

Rt. Rer. William T. Bradley
+  +

Rt. Rer. Sigmund Charewici
+  +  +

Rt. Rer. Jotepk Pajot
+  +  +

Rt. Rer. George V . Rieffer
+  +

Rt. Rer. Carlot S. Blanchard
+  +

Rt. Rer; Joae]
+

aguire Rt. Rev. Philip J. Cattidy
+  , +

7 Priests, 13 of Laity of Santa Fe Archdiocese Receive^Papal ^Honors
(See Page 1 Story Alio)

Among the seven priests of the 
Santa Fe Archdiocese honored by 
the Holy Father with the rank of 
Domestic Prelate, two are pas­
tors of parishes, three are con­
nected with the Chancery office, 
one is a hospital chaplain, and one 
is the rector of the minol: semi­
nary of the archdiocese.

The Rt. Rev. George V . Rieffer 
was born in St Louis, Mo., on 
Sept. 13, 1912. He made his eccle­
siastical studies in St. Louis and 
the North American college, Rome. 
Ordained to the priesthood on 
March 19, 1939, he became secre­
tary to Archbishop Gerken. From

A r e v o l u t io n a r y

new Idea!

“ S n a p ' S l c i t ’ ’
( / e n d i a n ,  B U T ^ D S

bu ilt  WITH 1

^ I M O V  k B t  f  S L A T S ;
UNSNAP ONE FASTENER . • • S ' ; ! ;  J M E  
SLAT OUT . . . CLEAN 'T  • ■ • SU P IT BACK 
.  . . RESNAP THE FASTENER.
If’ tkal EASY to have Sparkling, Clean Vene- 

ALL

24 ’ jIwel-Uke colon, with ‘ »>‘>ice of

Ask to See Our

NEW CALIFORNIA STYLE
VENETIAN BLINDS

Designed for Beouty

DENVER DnWSTRUlMNK
----— -  CIORCI F. ROCK. FrttfdMf I------------------------ --

Satisfaction Is Always the Best Bu^
For the Best Results on Floors, Walls, or any type of cl<?a^g 
. . . Call the Leading Company for Cleaners, Waxes, ;^*^fec- 

tants and Insecticides. All types of Floor MacWhf^

.All Products Manufactured in Our Own De^\f^ Plant
Guaranteed and Insured / / '/

We alio Service New and Old Floori . . . Make theih Look Like 
New . . . thii Saves You Money . . , Work dene by Experts.

E. J. Scarry & Co.
'1620 Market St. —  Denver TA. 4488

1942 to 1946 he was a professor 
in the archdiocesan seminary and 
was appointed rector of the Im­
maculate Heart of Mary seminary, 
Santa Fe, in 1946. He was created 
a Papal Chamberlain on Feb. 3, 
1948. Monsignor Rieffer has been 
director of the Confraternity of 
Christian Doctrine in the arch­
diocese since 1941. He became a 
consultor for the archdiocese in 
March of this year.

The Rt. Rev. William T. Brad­
ley was born Oct. 3, 1911. He 
made his ecclesiastical studies at 
St. Charles’ seminary, Overbrook, 
Pa.; St. Charles’ college seminary, 
Columbus, 0 .; Mt. St. Mary’s, Em- 
mitsburg, Md.; and Mt. St. Marys’ , 
Cincinnati, 0 .; and was ordained 
in Philadelphia May 22, 1937. 
Monsignor Bradley taught at the 
seminary from 1937 until 1939, 
and then took post^aduate stud­
ies at the Catholic university, 
Washington, as a student in the 
field of education. He was presi­
dent of Catholic Teachers’ college, 
Albuquerque, from 1940 to 1945. 
In 1945, Monsignor Bradley was 
appointed superintendent of Cath­
olic schools in the archdiocese, and 
the following year he became di­
rector of Charities. On Feb. 3, 
1948, he was created a Papal 
Chamberlain.

Born in Colton, Calif., Aug. 3, 
IGlb, the Rt. Rev, Carlos S. 
Blanchard prepared for the priest­
hood at St. Therese’s preparatory 
seminary. Las Vegas; St. Thomas’ 
s e m i n a r y ,  Denver; and the 
North American college in Rome. 
He was ordained at Las Vegas on 
May 18, 1939. Monsignor Blanch­
ard has served as assistant in Hot 
Springs and Pecos, and as pastor 
in Clayton and St. Ann’s parish, 
Santa Fe. From 1946 to 1948 the 
new Monsignor studied canon law 
at the Collegio Santa Maria del 
Lago and the Pontifical Gregorian 
university, Rome. He was aj^ 
pointed to the important ecclesi­
astical office of Chancellor and 
Officialis Jan. 1, 1949, and be­
came a Consultor of the archdio­
cese on March 20 of this year.

The Rt. Rev. Joseph Maguire, 
bom in Lexington, Mass., May 19, 
1898, made his ecclesiastical stud­
ies at St. Mary’s college, Kans., 
and St. Meinrad’s semina^, Ind. 
He was ordained on May 25, 1934, 
in Boston, Mass., and served for 
one year as a professor in the 
minor seminary. After one year as 
an assistant at the Sacred Hearty 
parish, Albuquerque, he was p ^  
tor jn Wagon Mound and later/in 
Taos. He is at present pasto;f^of 
St. Patrick’s parish, Raton, ^ d  a 
Consultor of the archdiocese.

The Rt, Rev. Philip J. CtTssicly, a 
native New Mexican, jjfa.s born 
June 3, 1907. He made lSis studies 
at St Patrick’s prepajSiory semi­
nary, Menlo Park, and St.
Thomas’ seminary, >®enver. Or­
dained on May 30‘''1931, Monsi­
gnor Cassidy was ^Administrator of 
St Charles’ p.tfri%, Albuquerque, 
and pastor o f  Anthony’s par­
ish, Dixon, yk/'.' present he is the 
pastor of Sw.xitose of Lima’s par­
ish, SantgT?',jsa. Under his direc­
tion wer̂ T h'Jilt St Charles’ church 
and rectcry, Albuquerque; the 
Bchool/anfi convent at Ranchos de 
Taos, the social centers at Santa 
Rosg arid Puerto de Luna, and the

new school and convent recently 
blessed by the Archbishop in Santa 
Rosa.

A native of France, the Rt. Rev. 
Joteph Pajot was born April 1, 
1879, in Carentoir, Morbihan. He 
made his ecclesiastical studies with 
the Eudist Fathers in Plancet, 
France; the Seminaire du Saint 
Esprit, Paris; Louvain university, 
and the American college. Or­
dained to the priesthood on July 
3, 1904, in Paris, Monsignor Pajot 
came to Santa Fe and was ap-

Eointed assistant pastor o f the Our 
ady of Guadalupe parish, Taos, 

in July, 1906. He served in El Rito 
for 14 years, spent 27 years as 
pastor of St. John the Baptist’s 
parish, San Juan Pueblo; and at 
present he is the chaplain of St. 
Anthony’s hospital. Las Vegas.

The Rt. Rev. Sigmund H. Chare- 
wicx, youngest o f the newly ap­
pointed Monsignori, is a native of 
Worcester, Mass., and was born 
Sept 16, 1917. He made his studies 
at Holy Cross college, Worcester, 
and St. Thomas’ seminary, Den­
ver. He was ordained Dec. 21, 
1943: Monsig^nor .Charewicz was 
appointed secretary to the Arch­
bishop in 1944 and was subse­
quently appointed chaplain of St. 
Catherine’s Indian school. Vice 
Chancellor of the archdiocese, and 
archdiocesan youth director.
10 Laymen Named 
Knights of Gregory

Ten laymen of the Santa Fi 
archdiocese were named Knigb' 
of St. Gregory.

Charles Joseph Eckert of 
Fe is a graduate of St. Loins '̂uni- 
versity high school and St' Mary’s 
college, Kans. Born Oct. 7̂ 2, 1889, 
he is the father of 13 .children, 
nine of whom are living;^has been 
a member of the St.Vincent de 
Paul society since 192?, is a char­
ter member and founder of the 
Knights of Columbus in Santa Fe, 
and a charter Jjinember of the 
Fourth Degreej^r. Eckert is vice 
president and ^sh ier of the First 
National bai^k'of Santa Fe.

Born in icbanon in 1894, Ray­
mond PauN'Shaya arrived in New 
Mexico i'.,'T910 and entered the 
jewelry ;^And insurance business. 
The fa'Jier of four children, Mr. 
Shay/'is a Fourth Degree mem­
ber Crf the Knights of Columbus. 
He,'has been active in the local 
gj>Vernment oA^he city of Santa 
Ke since 1944,%nd is a militant

]Vfr/. Kraemer Entertains 
SL Vincent’s Parish Unit
;  Mrs. Leo Kraemer entertained 

^t. Gerard’s circle of St. Vincent 
de Paul’s parish in her home re­
cently. Bridge awards went to Mrs. 
William Hewitt and Mrs. James 
Roper.

CATHEDRAL
These Friendly Firms D^erve Your Patronage

PRESCKIFTIONS Q _____
FOR AND DFXIVER|:|

G>lfax at Downing peĵ ver 
KEyitone 3217 >■

The Shirley Garage
OFFICIAL AAA GARAGE 

PHONE TABOR 6911 
OiT ind Night Storegs. Rtpalring 

Wufaing and Graaiing Gaaolint and OHa 
1681-}7 LINCOLN ST.

D O Y L E ’S
P H A R M A C Y

Tha Partlenlat Dragglat

17th AVE. AND GRANT
KE. 6997 f r e e  DELIVERY

Felipe S an ch ^^  Baca of Santa 
Fe, the father ot 13 children, of 
whom six are deceased, received 
his education from the Brothers 
of the Christian Schools and the 
Society of Jesus. He is a member 
of the Knights of Columbus, has 
served in the state highway com­
mission and the state tax commis­
sion, and was sheriff, land office 
receiver, councilman, and United 
States marshal. Mr. Sanchez y 
Baca was born in New Mexico in 
1879.

A Santa Fe printer and pub­
lisher, Louis Sebifani was bom 
Dec. 14, 1907, and received his 
education in the Catholic schools. 
He came to New Mexico in Novem­
ber of 1918, and has been grand 
knight and district deputy of the 
Knights of Columbus in Santa Fe. 
He IS married and has one daugh­
ter. Mr. Schifani is a member of a 
staunch Catholic family.

A native Indian of a Pueblo 
tribe of New Mexico, Severiano 
Naranjo is a retired vocational in­
structor of the New Mexican In­
dian school, Albuquerque. Born 
May 16, 1886, he has been a mem­
ber of the Knights of Columbus 
for 30 years, the past president 
of the St. Vincent de Paul society, 
and has been active in the Holy

Name society and the Confra­
ternity of Christian Doctrine in 
St. Therese’s parish, Albuquerque. 
Mr. Naranjo is the first native In­
dian to receive the Papal honor. 
He is widely known for his re­
markable charity.

Retired as an admiral of the 
United States navy in 1948, George 
Patton Kraker of Albuquerque 
has been an active Catholic all his 
life. Bom on May 26, 1896, Ad­
miral Kraker attended the New 
Mexico Military institute, Roswell, 
and the United States Naval acad­
emy, Annapolis, Md. He received 
his naval commission on June 6, 
1919. H e'has been awarded the. 
Croix de Guerre with Silver Ŝ ta; 
the American Area medal, ' t  
World war I and II Victory 
als, the American Defens4^ ”̂jJedal, 
the Asiatic-Pacific and Ev^opeam 
African medals, and the^iiegion of 
Merit with two Gold Stirs

FrancU E. McCuUbch is a con­
vert to Catholicism ftnd is the fa­
ther of four chlMren. He is at 
present assistant^’collector of in­
ternal revemie in Albuquerque. 
He served city clerk, Gallup, 
and with Fred Harvey system
of h o te l^ ^ e  has been a resident 
of Nei^Mexico for 24 years. He 
is a. ro'llnber of the Holy Name so­
ciety Tay chairman of the Cath- 
plij'tCharities drive, was chairman 
o f ^ e  Immaculate Conception par- 
hn and St. Mary’s school drive for 
mew buildings, is a member of the 
Hoard of the Mt. Calvary Ceme­
tery association, and was grand 
knight in Gallup and Albuquerque, 
and state deputy for the Knights 
of Columbus. He was chairman of 
the,Red Cross drive in 1950.

Horace D. Barela of Albuquer­
que was born .March 13, 1904, and 
has spent his entire life in New 
Mexico. A former manager of Kor- 
ber’s department store in Albu­
querque, Mr. Barela is president 
and manager of the Albuquerque 
Machinery and Tool company. He 
is the father of four children. He 
is an officer of the Holy Name so­
ciety, was a board member of the

Immaculate Coheeption p a r i s h
building campaign, of the Mt. 
vary Cemetery association, of tn^w 
Catholic Charities of Albuqu^qpii; 
lay director o f the ImmScu^te 
Conception parish credit .miion, 
and a member of the.,'Knr^hts of 
Columbus since 1924.J^ has been 
elected grand kni^Jjt.wputy grand 
knight, district deputy, and state 
deputy. Mr. Barela is also a mem­
ber of the Serra' club.

An. insurance solicitor for 23 
years, Thtngtiki J. McCaffrey has 
lived in Si^uquerque since 1919. 
He is fathermf three boys, one 
of w te^ is studying for the priest- 
hoo/’̂ 'in the Society of Jesus. At 
pr'<Ient he is the president of the
^  /tlllK U A (A AM AÂIVVA nfAV«1rA«

St. Jam es' Men 
Discuss Details 
Of Parish Picnic

(St. Jamei’ Parish, Denver)
The St. James Men’s club held 

its regular meeting July 12 in 
Walsh Memorial hall. Further de­
tails on the parish picnic Sunday, 
Aug. 6, at the Montclair Civic 
center were discussed.

The guest speaker for this meet­
ing was Dr. Alfred Crofts, asso­
ciate professor of history from 
the University of Denver. Dr. 
Crofts, former staff officer for 
General MacArthur, gave a talk 
on Korea and Japan.

The first meeting of the St. Ma­
ria Goretti bridge cjrcle was held 
June 27. Charter members are 
Mmes. Thirkell, captain; Manasil, 
treasurer; and Greco, Komemann, 
Lischka, Murphey, Quarantino, and 
Schwenger. The circle chose as 
its patroness St. Maria Goretti, 
model of purity, who was recently 
canonized.

Baptized last Sunday was Mary 
Ellen, infant daughter of Mr. and 
Mrs. T. A. Bertinuson, with Ken­
neth and Elizabeth Beebe as spon­
sors.

• +  +  +

Parents' Requiem at Family Reunion

I .^rra. club. He is an active worker
the activities :of the Immaculate 

(Conception paijish, chairman of 
the Catholic Le^on of Decency, a 
member of the Holy Name so­
ciety, board member of the Cath­
olic Charities, and has served as 
secretary, state ideput>, and gnrand 
knight of the Knights of 1 Colum­
bus. '

Chriitopher L. Seknedar, an out­
standing Catholic of Roswell, is a 
veteran of World war I and the 
father of four, children, one of 
whom is deceased. He was an ac 
tive worker in the erection of the 
new parochial school in Roswell, 
and is a member of the Third Or­
der of St. Francis and the Holy 
Name society.

Three Women Awarded 
Papal Medal

The three woiqen to be honored 
by the Holy Father with the Papal 
medal Pro Ecclesia et Pontifice 
are M n. Anna' T. Doherty, Mrt. 
Frank Ortiz y ' Davii, and Mill 
Clara Berchtold. The mother of 
seven children, Mrs. Doherty is a 
native of Ireland and has resided 
in New Mexico: since 1900. The 
owner of an investment and agri­
culture company, Mrs. Doherty has 
been an outstanding supporter of 
the Church in Phlsom for 50 years. 
She is widely known in the com­
munity for her; charitable contri­
butions. ,

Mrs. Frank 'iOrtiz y Davis is 
grand regent of t h e  Catholic 
Daughters o f America in N ew  
Mexico. Past district president of 
the Santa Fe Ari:hdiocesan Coun 
cil of Catholic Women and Cath­
olic representatave ir* Girl Scout 
work, Mrs. Ortiz has made munifi­
cent donations to the archdiocese 
for the advance of the work of 
the Church. She is the mother of 
five children.

Instrumental in the foundation 
of the Council of Catholic Women 
in New Mexico in 1930, Miss Clara 
Berchtold, a naj;ive of Illinois, is 
a member of the national execu­
tive board of NCCW. Miss Berch 
told has been an active participant 
in parish activities and an exem­
plary Catholic. '

The Domestic Prelates a r e  
priests associated with the Papal 
household. They are appointed, as 
a rule, by a special act of the Holy 
Father, usually at the petition of 
their Bishop, and they enjoy sev 
eral privileges, .among which are 
the use of the violet cassock, simi­
lar to that of a'Bishop; the violet 
biretta, and the cappa magna, or 
ecclesiastical cape. These prelates 
are appointed fpr life and retain 
their dignity at the death of the 
Pope.

The Holy See confers various 
orders of Christian knighthood 
upon ipen who have, in an out­
standing manner, furthered the 
well-being of the Church, the Holy 
See, and societyi The Order of St. 
Gregory the Great was established 
by Gregory XVI Sept. 1, 1831, to 
reward the civil and military vir­
tues of the subjects of the Papal 
states. The order has two main di­
visions, civil and'military. St. Greg 
ory the Great,, who died in the 
year 604, is one of the most no­
table figures in ecclesiastical hiS' 
tory. The association of modern 
Catholic laymen' in an order dedi­
cated ta this great doctor of the

A REQUIEM HIGH MASS offered for 
Joseph and Alix Baril in St James’ church,
Denver, on July 5 ■was attended by their entire 
family of 11 children, who are holding a family re­
union. This is the first reunion since the death of 
their i^ h e r  in Bristol, S. Dak., July 5, 1987.

Philip Baril, the eldest son and nearing 70 years 
of age, came from Minneapolis, Minn.; John Baril 
from Palatine, 111.; and Mrs. Lorenz Friend from 
Bristol, S. Dak. Albert, Napoleon, and Fred Baril,. 
Mrs. Hilbert Meyer, and Mrs. Ralph Stutz reside in

Aurora. ,Mrs. Joe Casper, Mrs. George Friend, and 
Mrs. Vincent Halpin make their home in Denver.

The family, of Canadian descent, all speak 
French and ^ent much time in reminiscence of child­
hood days, French patois, and other pleasantries. 
The fondest memories are of their parents’ unfal­
tering faith at all times in “ La Messe.”

Pictured above, standing, left to right, are John, 
Albert, Napoleon, Philip, and Fred Baril; seated, 
Mrs. Joe Casper, Mrs. Lorenz Friend, Mrs. George 
Friend, Mrs. Vincent Halpin, Mrs. Ralph Stutz, and 
Mrs. Hilbert Meyer.

Cb-';^ch, who sent the first mission-
•̂ fes to England, organized the 

Church in the middle ages, and is 
the link between the modern and 
Apostolic Church, is indicative of 
the honor the Holy Father bestows 
upon them.

The medal, Pro Ecclesia et Pon­
tifice, had its origin on July 17, 
1888, as a memorial or souvenir

of the golden sacerdotal Jubilee of 
Leo XIII, who bestowed it upon 
those men and women who aided in 
making his jubilee and the Vatican 
exposition successful. It ’has . been 
conserved by his successors, with 
his effigy, and is given by, the 
Holy Father in recognition of out­
standing service to the Pope and 
the Chhrch.

ST. VINCENT DE PAU L'S  PARISH
Patronise These Friendly Firms

LEN’ S Pharmacy
L. 0. FCHR, Prop.

Htmbtr St. Vincent de Paul'e Parleh
Have Your Doctor Phone 

Ui Your PreacriptioD
2707 E. Louisiana RA. 3739

At LoaifUnt and South Clayton

The firms listed here de­
serve to be remembered 
when you are distributing 
your patronage in the dif­
ferent lines of business.

FOR YOUR 
PLUMBING NEEDS

Mil ys!
SHOP: SP. 2309 
RES: SP. 9122

BRICKEY & MOLLOT
Frank Mollot, Owner

(Member St. Vincent de Paul’a 
Piriab)

665 So. Pearl St.

Quality Repair Parts
Expert Workmanship 
We Sell and  Install

C R A N E
P t U M R I N G  E Q U I P MI N T

IF IT ’S V A R IE TY YOU W ANT -  T R Y

VARSITY VARIETY  
STORE5 c " ' '  i 10c ai d̂

up

2070 SO. UNIVERSITY RLVD.

LA BRAE 
CLEANERS

Mr. and Mr.s. Harold Salmon 
2717 E. LOUISIANA PE. 1792

Washington Park Mkt.
Red & White Food Store 

BILL W jCHES, Prop.

Complete Food Service
598 South Gilpin

“ It’a Smart to Ba Thrifty"

Hawes Food Store
Booker Ha^yea—Oayla Hawet

An IGA Store
Quality Meats -  

Groceries
Fresh & Frozen Fruits 

and Vegetahles 
Louisiana and Gayton

SP. 5717 D.u«a
Open 7 to 7 Week Days 

Cloted Sundays

R ONNIE RRAF  
Shopping District

C O N O C O X R O D U C T S
Lubrication, Car Washing, Batteries 

Recharged, Tire Vulcanizing

R O N N I E  R R A E  
CONOCO SERVICE

724 So. University PE. 9909

Bonnie Brae 
Brug Co.

Alfred C. Andcracn. Owner-Uanszer 
Have your Oo^ ot 'phone us 

your Prescriptions 
Beera, Winea, Etc.

763 So. Univeraity RA. 2874

The firms listed here de­
serve to be remembered 
when you are distributing 
your patronage in the dif­
ferent lines of business.

Preisser's Red & White 
Grocery and Market

FANCY MEATS. VEGETABLES. AND 
QUALITY GROCERIES AT 

REASONABLE PRICES
Free Delivery SPruce 4447
2331 R  Ohio Ave. (So. Uni'v. and Ohio)

SOUTH GAYLORD  
opping District
DR. D. G. BOOREN

—OPTOiMETRIST—
1077 South Gaylord

Call SP. 2898 for Appointment

Overstake's Pharmacy
1000 So. Gaylord RA. 4401

Have Your Doctor Phone 
Vs His Prescription 

We Deliver
tPe Give V Green Stamps

Shoes for the Family
Weatherbird Shoea for Children 

X-ray Fitting

Sendel Shoe Store
1023 So. Gaylord RA. 5087

1092 So. 
Gaylord 
P E .2464 BOB’ S «>•
SUPER MARKET

Meata • Grocariea • Vegotablea 
Better Quality for Less ___

« BONNIE BRAE 
Plumbing & Heating

Ctrl Canningbtm Ret. Ph. OE. 7091 
Troy Canninghtin Ret. Ph. PE. 1171

G. E. APPLIANCES
1076 So. Gaylord RA. 4607

Mobiloil • Pennzoil r Mobilgaa 
Lubrication & Washing 

Tuno Up ■ Clutch A  Brake

So. Gaylord Service 
Center and Garage

1001 So. Gaylord SP. 6443

[ommunity flou iEr:
C+nro IW3 SOUTH 6HYL0RD 
)I0rP PHONE SRrucc73l8

VAN ZUIMEBUAN, Manager

5D(QAUSTSt1 CAfiTT MSTQK5

MARY AfINE
BAKERIES 

taivED
Decorated 

WEDDING 
CAKES 

(“ all butter") 
IP  and
V op

Free Delivery an 92 Order 
1026 8. Gaylord 25 Broadway 
PEarl 7316 SPruca 761}

QuaUty Cleaning
Washington Park 

Cleaners
N. W. CHR1STENSE.>7

1087 S. Gaylord SP. 7898 .

HARDWARE
rYREXWASE. 8U.BX COFFEE HAKEBS 

KEMTONB -  UcHUBTBY PAINTS 
HOUSEHOLD WARE

So. Gaylord Hdw. Co.
loss So. Gaylord , SP. 2961

\




